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Our ref:  ID 7618: A1111493 
Your ref: ABU2-000-EN-V01-00008  
Contact:  
Email:   

  
Exploration Manager 
ConocoPhillips Australia SH1 Pty Ltd  
L1, 33 Park Road 
Milton QLD 4064 

 

Dear  

RE: ENVIRONMENT PLAN – NOT REASONABLY SATISFIED – OTWAY EXPLORATION DRILLING PROGRAM 

I write with regard to the Otway Exploration Drilling Program Environment Plan (the EP) (Document No. ABU2-

000-EN-V01-D-00008, Revision 002, dated 05 July 2024) submitted to NOPSEMA by ConocoPhillips Australia SH1 

Pty Ltd (“ConocoPhillips Australia”).  

In accordance with regulation 33(5) of the Offshore Petroleum and Greenhouse Gas Storage (Environment) 

Regulations 2023 (the Environment Regulations), NOPSEMA provides this notice because, pursuant to regulation 

33(1) of the Environment Regulations, NOPSEMA is not reasonably satisfied that the EP meets the EP acceptance 

criteria set out in regulation 34[a], [b], [c], [d], [e], [g] of the Environment Regulations. The reasons for this are 

provided in Attachment 1.  

NOPSEMA is giving ConocoPhillips Australia an opportunity to modify and resubmit the EP (the modified EP). The 

modified EP must be submitted to NOPSEMA by no later than 21 October 2024. If you feel that this is not a 

reasonable period of time in which to submit the modified EP, please request an extension within 21 days of 

receipt of this letter.  

Please note the importance of addressing each matter detailed in Attachment 1 in the modified EP, as a failure 

to do so may result in NOPSEMA’s refusal to accept the modified EP.  

In accordance with regulation 33(10) of the Environment Regulations, if a modified EP is not submitted within 

the timeframe, NOPSEMA may refuse to accept the EP, or accept it in part for a particular stage of the activity or 

accept the EP with limitations or conditions. 

Additional matters, including editorial matters, that NOPSEMA wishes to raise for ConocoPhillips Australia’s 

consideration are provided in Attachment 2. 

Please provide the modified EP, together with a copy showing all changes made to each document (via: 

https://securefile.nopsema.gov.au/filedrop/submissions). On receiving the modified EP, NOPSEMA will 

undertake an assessment in accordance with regulations 33(7) and 33(8) of the Environment Regulations.  

Should you have any questions please contact  on  

Yours sincerely 

 
Director - Exploration & Development Environment 
wA861854 

23 August 2024 
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• Ferreira, L.C., Jenner, C., Jenner, M. et al. 2024. Predicting suitable habitats for foraging and migration in Eastern Indian Ocean pygmy blue whales 
from satellite tracking data. Mov Ecol 12, 42. https://doi.org/10.1186/s40462-024-00481-x.  

• Branch, T.A., Monnahan, C.C., Leroy, E.C. et al. 2023. Further revisions to the historical catch separation of pygmy blue whale populations using 
contemporary song detections, International Whaling Commission, Document SC/69A/SH/09. IWC | Archive. 

In revising the EP, please incorporate additional information on the presence, distribution and behaviours of blue whales in the Otway region using relevant 
contemporary references and information sources. 

7 The acronym ‘AAZ’ (used in the context of fauna observation and management controls) is not defined anywhere in the EP.  

8 The spill modelling reports (Appendix E) do not include the addendum presenting additional near-field modelling by RPS that confirms the 
representativeness of spill modelling for water depths of up to 200 m identified in Section 7.7.2 of the EP and in ConocoPhillips Australia’s response to the 
request for further written information Item 2.5.  

9 The submission contains inconsistent information regarding the number of wells. There are a number of references to 6 wells for the activity, whilst Table 
2-2 states up to 7, as does pages 45-46.  Please check the entire submission for consistency on number of wells.  

10 Figure 1-1 of the EP does not clearly label the two operational areas in VIC/P79 and the three operational areas in T/49P. Please amend the EP accordingly.  

11 Table 6-20 indicates that the duration of resupply activities that involve DP is 5 days per well. However, Section 6.6.7.1 of the EP states that “typical 
resupply takes on average 3 hours”. Therefore, the duration of this activity and their potential to disturb marine fauna is not clear. 

12 The spatial extent of the EMBAs for impulsive sound emissions in Table 4-1 and Table 6-41 of the EP are not clear. For example, one EMBA is described as 
‘2.5 km EMBA around VSP activities for Injury to Marine Mammals’, but then states ‘*assessed under the 6.5 km buffer’ with no explanation of what this 
larger buffer is based on or why it is selected. 

13 There are discrepancies regarding the noise modelling scenarios introduced in Table 6-21 of the EP, subsequent modelling results tables, and the modelling 
report (Appendix G). Specifically, it is unclear whether scenario #5 modelled on the shelf edge (Garfield West) involves a standby vessel (as per Scenario 
#5 in Table 6-21) or a supply vessel operating DP (as per Scenario #5 in Table 6-24 and Table 6-25). Therefore, it is currently unclear whether the described 
EMBA or the impact assessment have considered the larger effects range associated with a DP scenario rather than a quieter idling/slow transiting vessel 
scenario. 

 




